BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF MISSOURI

The Manager of the Manufactured
Homes and Modular Units Program of the
Missouri Public Service Commission,

Complainant,
File No. MC-2020-0135

V.

Charles W. Brune and Anna G. Brune
d/b/a Brune Mobile Sales,

N N N N N N N N N N N N

Respondents.
NOTICE AND ORDER

Date Issued: December 2, 2020 Date Effective: December 2, 2020
On October 21, 2020, the Commission issued its Order Approving Stipulation and
Agreement in this file. On December 1, 2020, the Manager of the Manufactured Homes
and Modular Units Program of the Missouri Public Service Commission (Manager) filed a
Motion Requesting Disciplinary Action (Motion). The Motion alleges Respondents are in
violation of the Order Approving Stipulation and Agreement. It requests that the
Commission set a date for a hearing in this matter. It states the Manager will request that
the Commission impose disciplinary action of permanently revoking Respondents’
license; order Respondents to compensate homeowners for the cost of engineering
inspections, repairs that comply with Commission rule, and reinspection fees; and find
Respondents liable for two thousand dollars ($2,000) to be paid to the Public School Fund
pursuant to 8 386.600, RSMo. The Commission will issue notice of the Manager’s Motion,
and will order that the Commission’s Data Center shall serve a copy of this Notice and

Order, the Manager’'s Motion Requesting Disciplinary Action, and the Commission’s



Order Approving Stipulation and Agreement upon Respondents. The Commission will set
a deadline for a response to the Motion.

THE COMMISSION ORDERS THAT:

1. A copy of the Motion Requesting Disciplinary Action, the Commission’s
October 21, 2020, Order Approving Stipulation and Agreement and this Notice and Order
shall be served upon Respondents by serving Charles W. Brune and Anna G. Brune at
901 N. Kingshighway, Perryville, Missouri 63775.

2. Respondents shall file a response to the Manager's Motion no later than
January 2, 2021.

3. This order shall be effective when issued.

BY THE COMMISSION

Morris L. Woodruff
Secretary

Paul T. Graham, Regulatory Law Judge,
by delegation of authority pursuant to
Section 386.240, RSMo 2016.

Dated at Jefferson City, Missouri,
on this 2" day of December, 2020.



BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF MISSOURI

The Manager of the Manufactured Homes and
Modular Units Program of the Missouri Public
Service Commission,

Complainant,

V. Case No. MC-2020-0135

Charles W. Brune and Anna G. Brune d/b/a Brune
Mobile Sales,

N N N N N N N N N N N N

Respondents.

MOTION REQUESTING DISCIPLINARY ACTION

COMES NOW the Manager of the Manufactured Housing and Modular Units
Program (“Manager”), through counsel, and files this Motion Requesting
Disciplinary Action.

1. In its inspection reports, the Commission’s Manufactured Housing &
Modular Units Program (“Program”) found that the building sites were not properly
prepared and the foundations were improperly installed at all five homes that are the

subject of this case.!

! The Program stated the following in its deficiency reports regarding the foundation at the
Schemel/Fox home:

Site Prep: Incorrect The site is not properly sloped so surface drainage water is directed
away from the home. From the perimeter of the home the ground needs to slope away from the
home for the first 10’ with a minimum slope of ¥2” per foot. Where property lines, walls, slopes or
other physical conditions prohibit this slope, provide the site with drains, swales or grading to drain
water away from the structure. Refer to manufactures installation instructions.

Footings/Piers: Incorrect 1. The concrete pad needs to be back filled to get the proper
frost depth and so surface drainage water is directed away from the home. Refer to manufactures
instructions.

2. The concrete block piers are not installed correctly and/or are not configured correctly.
Several have the wrong size cap blocks, concrete blocks on there side, and/or wrong kind of 4”



2. Staff and the Brunes entered into a Stipulation and Agreement
(“Stipulation”) resolving all issues in this case. The Stipulation was filed on July 23, 2020,
and on October 21, 2020 the Commission ordered the parties to comply with its terms.

3. In paragraph 12 of the Stipulation, the Brunes agreed to the following:

12. Hiring of Licensed Civil Engineer: Respondents
shall investigate hiring a licensed civil engineer to inspect the
foundations of the Schemel/Fox and Thomas homes. If
Respondents hire a licensed civil engineer to inspect the
homes, the Manager will not pursue payment to the public
school fund as allowed pursuant to 8 386.600, RSMo. If
Respondents hire a civil engineer who states in a stamped

cap blocks or not a 4” cap block. Piers need to be installed per the manufactured installation
instructions.

3. There are door piers missing on the back door. Refer to manufacturers installation
instructions.

Complaint, Appendix J (Nov 15, 2019).
The Program stated the following in its deficiency reports regarding the foundation at the Thomas
home:

Site Prep: Incorrect The area under the home needs to be crowned so water cannot
pond under the home. The site is not properly sloped so surface drainage water is directed away
from the home. Crown the soil under the home to prevent water from ponding. Then from the
perimeter of the home the ground needs to slope away from the home for the first 10" with a
minimum slope of 2" per foot. Refer to manufactures installation instructions.

Footings/Piers: Incorrect 1. The concrete pad is not 6” thick as required nor is there a
frost grade footer installed. A concrete pad needs to be 6” thick with a 12” frost grade footer
installed around the perimeter at this location. Also a pad needs to be back filled to get the proper
frost depth and slope away from a home.

2. There are no door piers installed. Refer to manufactures installation instructions.

3. Wedges are installed wrong, wedges need to be used in pairs and installed on both
sides of the I-beam. Also wedges are not to exceed one inch of space between the cap block
and the I-beam. Filler wood should be the same size of the piers, not smaller. Refer to
manufactures installation instructions.

4. Cap Blocks need to be solid masonry (nominal 4” x 8" x 16" pre-cast concrete without
reinforcement), lumber (nominal 2” x 8" x 16"), or steel (minimum %%” thick, corrosion protected by
a min. of a 10 mil coating of an exterior paint or equivalent) and filler wood needs to be nominal
2” thick hardwood boards or nominal 2” or 4” thick concrete blocks. Shims need to be nominal 4-
inch by 6-inch by 1-inch (max. vertical height) hardwood wood shims used in pairs. Refer to
manufactures installation instructions.

5. There are several frame piers that are out of plum. The maximum a single stack pier
can be out of plumb is 2" and the maximum a double stack pier can be out of plumb is 1. Refer
to manufactures installation instructions.

Complaint, Appendix L (Nov 15, 2019).



engineering report that the foundations of the Schemel/Fox
and Thomas houses are sound, the Signatories shall take no
further action regarding the foundations. If Respondents do
not hire a licensed civil engineer or a licensed civil engineer
states that the foundations are not sound, the Signatories
shall further discuss responsibilities and repairs.

4. In paragraph 22 of the Stipulation, the Brunes agreed to the following:

22.  Upon the Manager’s reasonable belief that a violation
of any of the above conditions has occurred, the Manager may
file a motion with the Commission seeking disciplinary action
(for example, suspension or revocation of dealer registration)
and penalties as the Manager deems appropriate. The
Commission may thereupon set the matter for hearing to
determine whether a violation of the terms of this Agreement
has taken place and, if so, the Signatories agree that the
Commission may enter an order regarding discipline and
penalties that the Commission deems just and proper.

5. Before the Stipulation was approved and without consulting with the
Manager, respondents hired a licensed civil engineer, Mark A. Lester, P.E., to inspect the
foundations. Mr. Lester, writes in his reports, dated June 30, 2020, that the homes’
foundations comply with the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development’s
Permanent Foundations Guide for Manufactured Housing (1996 ed.). The engineering
reports are attached hereto as Appendices A and B.

6. The Brunes stated in paragraph 14 of the Stipulation that they “are
committed to resolving all outstanding deficiencies in the Schemel/Fox and Thomas
homes to be in compliance with state law.” Missouri law § 700.683.1. states:

The Commission shall require installers to install homes in
accordance with the installation instructions provided by the
manufacturer of the manufactured home. The instructions
shall have been approved by the United States Department of
Housing and Urban Development or one of its authorized

agents pursuant to the National Manufactured Housing
Construction and Safety Standards Act of 1974, as amended.



The Brunes may rely on this provision to claim that the foundations are sound, because
Mr. Lester stated that they comply with a HUD guideline. Compliance with HUD
guidelines is important but alone is insufficient to establish that the foundations are sound
under Missouri's legal requirements. Missouri law § 700.683.1. states that the
Commission shall require installers to install manufactured homes in accordance with the
manufacturers’ instructions. Further, Commission Rule 24 CSR 4240-120.065(1)(B)
requires manufactured homes to be installed in compliance with the manufacturer’s
installation manual, 24 CFR 3285, and 8§ 700.010 to 700.115, RSMo.

7. On August 26, 2020 the undersigned counsel sent a letter to Thad Brady,
respondents’ counsel, stating that the reports do not meet the Stipulation’s requirements,
because Mr. Lester does not describe how the setups comply with Missouri law and
Commission standards. Mr. Lester’s reports do not refer to the manufacturers’ installation
manuals, 24 CFR 3285, or Missouri law. Mr. Lester does not even mention the Program’s
deficiency reports. Mr. Brady did not respond to this letter.

8. On September 28, 2020 Justin Smith, the Manager, contacted Mr. Lester
via telephone seeking clarification of his reports. Mr. Lester asked Mr. Smith to send his
guestions via email, which Mr. Smith did on September 30, 2020. Mr. Lester did not
respond to Mr. Smith’s questions.

9. Counsel sent an email to Mr. Brady on October 28, 2020 requesting his
assistance to facilitate a conversation between Mr. Smith and Mr. Lester. Mr. Brady has
not responded. Counsel left telephone messages at Mr. Brady's office

on November 12, 2020 and November 18, 2020 requesting return phone calls. In the last



telephone call, counsel advised Mr. Brady's office that she would file this motion.
Mr. Brady did not respond.

10. Paragraph 12 of the Stipulation states that “[i]f Respondents do not hire a
licensed civil engineer or a licensed civil engineer states that the foundations are not
sound, the Signatories shall further discuss responsibilities and repairs.” Although the
Respondents hired a licensed civil engineer, the civil engineer did not state that the
foundations comply with Commission rule. The parties have not discussed
responsibilities and repairs due to a lack of communication.

11. For these reasons, the Manager requests that the Commission set a date
for a hearing in this matter. At this hearing the Manager will request that the Commission
impose disciplinary action of permanently revoking Respondents’ license; order
Respondents to compensate the homeowners’ for the cost of engineering inspections,
repairs that comply with Commission rule, and reinspection fees; and find Respondents
liable for two thousand dollars ($2,000) to be paid to the Public School Fund pursuant to
§ 386.600, RSMo.2

Respectfully submitted,

[s/ Karen E. Bretz

Karen E. Bretz

Senior Counsel

Missouri Bar No. 70632

Attorney for the Staff of the

Missouri Public Service Commission
P.O. Box 360

Jefferson City, MO 65102
573-751-5472 (Voice)

573-751-9285 (Fax)
Karen.Bretz@psc.mo.gov

2 In paragraph 15 of the Stipulation the Respondents agreed that if they do not hire a licensed
engineer to inspect the homes’ foundations as provided in paragraph 12, they would remit a
payment of $2000 to the Public School Fund.


mailto:Karen.Bretz@psc.mo.gov

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

| hereby certify that copies of the foregoing have been electronically mailed to all
parties and/or counsel of record on this 15t day of December, 2020.

/s/ Karen E. Bretz



STATE OF MISSOURI
PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

At a session of the Public Service
Commission held by telephone
and internet audio conference
on the 21%t day of October,
2020.

The Manager of the Manufactured
Homes and Modular Units Program of the
Missouri Public Service Commission,

Complainant,
File No. MC-2020-0135

V.

Charles W. Brune and Anna G. Brune
d/b/a Brune Mobile Sales,

N N N N N N N N N N N N

Respondents.
ORDER APPROVING STIPULATION AND AGREEMENT

Issue Date: October 21, 2020 Effective Date: November 20, 2020
The Manager of the Manufactured Housing and Modular Units Program of the
Public Service Commission (Manager) filed a complaint against Charles W. Brune and
Anna G. Brune d/b/a Brune Mobile Sales (Brune), a registered dealer of manufactured
housing units. The complaint alleged that with respect to the sale and installation of
manufactured homes, Brune failed to arrange for proper initial setup in violation of Section
700.100.3(6), RSMo, and Commission Rule 20 CSR 4240-120.065(1)(A); failed to correct
defects within 90 days in violation of Section 700.045(5), RSMo; engaged in the
installation of homes without a license in violation of Section 700.656.1, RSMo; failed to
employ or subcontract with a licensed installer in violation of Section 700.656.3, RSMo;

and failed to file monthly sales reports in violation of Section 700.096.1, RSMo. The



parties have reached a stipulation and agreement (agreement) for the resolution of the
complaint. The parties have agreed customer information may be redacted from the
agreement as confidential. The Redacted Stipulation and Agreement was filed on
October 14, 2020.

After reviewing the agreement, the Commission finds and concludes that it is a
reasonable resolution of the complaint and should be approved.

THE COMMISSION ORDERS THAT:

1. The stipulation and agreement filed on July 23, 2020, is approved. All
parts redacted per the Redacted Stipulation and Agreement filed on October 14, 2020,
shall be deemed confidential. The signatory parties are ordered to comply with its
terms.

2. If the Manager of the Manufactured Housing and Modular Units Program
of the Public Service Commission has not dismissed its complaint in compliance
with the stipulation and agreement, they shall file a status report no later than
May 19, 2021.

3. This order is effective on November 20, 2020.

BY THE COMMISSION

Morris\"L. Woodruff
Secretary

Silvey, Chm., Kenney, Rupp, Coleman, and
Holsman CC., concur.

Graham, Regulatory Law Judge



STATE OF MISSOURI
OFFICE OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

| have compared the preceding copy with the original on file in

this office and | do hereby certify the same to be a true copy

therefrom and the whole thereof.
WITNESS my hand and seal of the Public Service Commission,

at Jefferson City, Missouri, this 2"9 day of December, 2020.

[V Lo R Dbl

Morris“L. Woodruff
Secretary
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Digitally signed by

MOPSC
Date: 2025.08.13 09:35:30
-05'00"

MOPSC



MISSOURI PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

File/Case No. MC-2020-0135

Missouri Public Service
Commission

Staff Counsel Department

200 Madison Street, Suite 800
P.O. Box 360

Jefferson City, MO 65102
staffcounselservice@psc.mo.gov

Brune Mobile Sales
Thad M Brady

2480 E Main St Ste E
Jackson, MO 63755
thad@semolawfirm.com

December 3, 2020

Office of the Public Counsel
Marc Poston

200 Madison Street, Suite 650
P.O. Box 2230

Jefferson City, MO 65102
opcservice@opc.mo.gov

Charles W. Brune
Charles W Brune
901 N. Kingshighway

Perryville, MO 63775

Anna G. Brune
Anna G Brune
901 N. Kingshighway

Perryville, MO 63775

Missouri Public Service
Commission

Karen Bretz

200 Madison Street, Suite 800
P.O. Box 360

Jefferson City, MO 65102
Karen.Bretz@psc.mo.gov

Enclosed find a certified copy of an Order or Notice issued in the above-referenced matter(s).

Sincerely,

[V s R Do

Morris L. Woodruff
Secretary

Recipients listed above with a valid e-mail address will receive electronic service. Recipients without a valid e-mail

address will receive paper service.
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